Niagara Peninsula
CONSERVATION
nafure for all

S

DRINKING WATER
SOURCE PROTECTION

Our Actions Matter

)

SOURCE PROTECTION AUTHORITY
ON-LINE VIDEO CONFERENCE
AND IN-PERSON MEETING

Carolinian Hall
3350 Merrittville Hwy

Friday, February 27, 2026
To Be Held Imnmediately Before the Full Authority Meeting

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER

The Niagara Peninsula watershed is situated within the traditional territory of the Haudenosaunee,
Attiwonderonk (Neutral), and the Anishinaabeg, including the Mississaugas of the Credit—many of
whom continue to live and work here today. This territory is covered by the Upper Canada Treaties
(No. 3, 4, and 381) and is within the land protected by the Dish with One Spoon Wampum
agreement. Today, the watershed is home to many First Nations, Métis, and Inuit peoples. Through
the 2021-2031 Strategic Plan, we re-confirm our commitment to shared stewardship of natural
resources and deep appreciation of Indigenous culture and history in the watershed.

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

2. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

L

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
3.1. Approval of the Minutes of the Source Protection Authority meeting dated
April 25, 2025
Page # 1
4, CORRESPONDENCE
4.1. Correspondence dated February 9, 2026, from the Ministry of the Environment,

Conservation & Parks RE: Chair of the Niagara Peninsula Source Protection Committee
Appointment

Page #4
5. PRESENTATIONS
6. DELEGATIONS
7. CONSENT ITEMS
8. DISCUSSION ITEMS

8.1. Report No. SPA-01-26: SPC Member Appointment
Page #8



9.  NEW BUSINESS
10. CLOSED SESSION (IF REQUIRED)

11. ADJOURNMENT



Niagara Peninsula
CONSERVATION
nafure for all

S

DRINKING WATER
SOURCE PROTECTION

Our Actions Matter

)

SOURCE PROTECTION AUTHORITY
ON-LINE VIDEO CONFERENCE
AND IN-PERSON MEETING

Carolinian Hall
3350 Merrittville Hwy

Friday, April 25, 2025
To Be Held Imnmediately Before the Full Authority Meeting

MINUTES

ATTENDANCE:
Stew Beattie, NPCA Vice-Chair
Brad Clark
Donna Cridland
Rob Foster
Brian Grant
John Metcalfe, NPCA Chair
Patrick O’Neill
Michelle Seaborn
Albert Witteveen
REGRETS:
Mark Tadeson
NPCA: Leilani Lee-Yates, CAO & Secretary Treasurer
Brenden Buggeln, Manager Natural Hazards Management & Resiliency
Melanie Davis, Manager, Office of the CAO & Board
D. Deluce, Director, Planning & Development
Lise Gagnon, Director, Corporate Services
Eric Gervais, Manager Corporate Support Services
Natalie Green, Director, Watershed Strategies & Climate Change
Amy Parks, Manager Planning Ecology
Kim Peters, Manager, Environmental Planning & Policy
Thomas Proks, Source Water Protection Co-ordinator
Sunny Shah, Accounting Coordinator
Gina Shaule, Administrative Assistant

Meeting was called to order at 10:00am
1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Resolution NO. SPA-01-25

Moved by: Brian Grant
Seconded by: Stew Beattie

THAT the agenda dated April 25, 2025 BE APPROVED.
CARRIED
2, DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

10f 17



3.

3.1.

5.1.

8.1.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approval of the Minutes of the Source Protection Authority meeting dated
April 19, 2024

Resolution NO. SPA-02-25
Moved by: Stew Beattie
Seconded by: Albert Witteveen

THAT the Minutes of the Source Protection Authority meeting dated April 19, 2024 BE

APPROVED.
CARRIED

CORRESPONDENCE
None.

PRESENTATIONS
Niagara Peninsula Source Protection Area Overview and Updates
Resolution NO. SPA-03-25

Moved by: Stew Beattie
Seconded by: Albert Witteveen

THAT the Presentation Niagara Peninsula Source Protection Area Overview and

Updates BE RECEIVED
CARRIED

DELEGATIONS
None.

CONSENT ITEMS
None

DISCUSSION ITEMS

Report No. SPA-01-25: 2024 Drinking Water Source Protection Annual
Progress Reporting

Resolution NO. SPA-04-25
Moved by: Donna Cridland
Seconded by: Rob Foster

THAT Report No. SPA-01-25: 2024 Drinking Water Source Protection Annual Progress

Reporting BE APPROVED.
CARRIED

8.2. Report No. SPA-02-25: Issuance of Notices to Niagara Region

Resolution NO. SPA-05-25
Moved by: Albert Witteveen
Seconded by: Stew Beattie

THAT Report No. SPA-02-25: Issuance of Notices to Niagara Region BE APPROVED.

CARRIED

20f17



10.

11.

NEW BUSINESS
None.

CLOSED SESSION
None

ADJOURNMENT
Resolution NO. SPA-06-25

Moved by: Rob Foster
Seconded by: Brian Grant

THAT the Source Water Protection Authority meeting ADJOURN at 10:16 am

30of17



Ministry of the Environment, Ministére de I'Environnement, »
Conservation and Parks de la Protection de la nature et des ===
Parcs

Office of the Minister Bureau du ministre

h 4
777 Bay Street, 5th Floor 777, rue Bay, 5° étage Ontario
Toronto ON M7A 2J3 Toronto (Ontario) M7A 2J3
Tel.: 416-314-6790 Tél. : 416.314.6790

357-2025-2381
February 9, 2026

April Jeffs

25 Parkway

Welland ON L3C 4B9

Email: mayorjeffs@gmail.com

Dear April Jeffs:

Pursuant to subsection 7(4) of the Clean Water Act, 2006, | am pleased to appoint you
as Chair of the Niagara Peninsula Source Protection Committee. Your appointment to
serve at the minister’s pleasure is effective upon the date of this letter for a period of up
to three years and can be revoked at any time.

As the local champion for the program, you will play an important role in maintaining
local program awareness and support, which is essential in achieving local
implementation success. Engaging senior municipal officials as well as business and
community leaders is critical. Your leadership in this regard and your ability to foster this
collaboration will be key to the program’s overall success.

You will be remunerated in accordance with Order in Council 83/2008 which allows for a
per diem of $350. You will also be eligible for reimbursement of reasonable expenses in
accordance with the Management Board of Cabinet's Travel, Meal and Hospitality
Expenses Directive.

We expect that you will be committed to the principles and values of public service and
to perform your duty with integrity. As a government appointee, you are required to
avoid any real or perceived conflict of interest. Accordingly, you cannot use or disclose
any information obtained as a result of your appointment for any purpose unrelated to
your work on the Niagara Peninsula Source Protection Committee. In addition, you
cannot promote solutions or strategies that would directly or indirectly benefit your
employer and/or business interests. In the event any situation in which your personal or
professional interests, relationships or obligations could conflict with your duties as
Chair of the Niagara Peninsula Source Protection Committee, you must declare it to me
in writing, as | will serve as your ethics advisor, at your earliest opportunity.

The Government of Ontario is committed to openness, transparency and collaboration
to promote an efficient, effective and modern public service.

4 of 17


mailto:mayorjeffs@gmail.com

April Jeffs
Page 2.

The terms and conditions of your appointment are set out in Appendix 1 to this letter. If
you have any questions regarding this appointment, please contact Kirsten Service,
Director, Conservation & Source Protection Branch, at 705-987-5144 or by email at
Kirsten.service@Ontario.ca.

| am very pleased that you have taken on this important responsibility to serve the
people of Ontario.

Sincerely,

Gl

Todd McCarthy
Minister of the Environment, Conservation and Parks

Enclosure

C: Kirsten Service, Director, Conservation & Source Protection Branch, MECP

50of17


mailto:Kirsten.service@Ontario.ca

APPENDIX 1

Terms and Conditions of Appointment — Chair of the Source Protection Committee

Roles and Responsibilities:

Complete any required orientation and training provided by the Public
Appointments Secretariat, the Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and
Parks (the Ministry) and the source protection authority.

Attend meetings of the source protection committee, including municipal
meetings, as requested and necessary.

Be the local champion of the program, engage senior municipal officials and
business/community leaders and maintain local program awareness and support
to implement source protection plans.

Upon request of the Director of the Conservation and Source Protection Branch,
chairs will provide an annual forecast of anticipated calendar days expected to be
spent on official business of the committee as chair to the Ministry.

Remuneration:

Submit per diem and expenses to the Ministry’s Conservation and Source
Protection Branch for processing in accordance with directions provided by
Ministry staff. The Ministry reserves the right to confirm details of the
remuneration request with the source protection authority's Chief Administrative
Officer/General Manager (e.g. meeting dates and duration).

Per diem remuneration will be reimbursed as follows:

o $350 per diem for a calendar day attendance at a meeting of the source
protection committee and any preparatory work in accordance with Order
in Council 83/2008 established for the remuneration of source protection
committee Chairs. For the purposes of remuneration, a “calendar day” is
between 3 and 7.25 hours.

o Any time submitted less than 3 hours would be reimbursed at half the
noted per diem rate.

Only one per diem for a calendar day can be claimed by any government
appointee, in accordance with section 3.4 of the Agencies and Appointments
Directive (AAD) of the Management Board of Cabinet
(https://www.ontario.ca/page/agencies-and-appointments-directive).
Work-related travel expenses (e.g. necessary travel and other allowable
expenses) will be reimbursed in accordance with the Management Board of
Cabinet’s Travel, Meal and Hospitality Directive
(https://www.ontario.ca/document/travel-meal-and-hospitality-expenses-directive)
incurred by the Chair in the performance of his or her duties as the Chair of the
source protection committee.

Conflict of Interest and Ethics:

Adhere to the conflict-of-interest rules set out in section 3.3 (Ethical Framework)
of the AAD.

Fulfill the duties of your appointment in a professional, ethical and competent
manner and avoid any real or perceived conflict of interest.

Perform all chair functions in an independent manner and not as a representative
of your employers, any organization to which you belong, or any other person or
body.

6 of 17


https://www.ontario.ca/page/agencies-and-appointments-directive
https://www.ontario.ca/document/travel-meal-and-hospitality-expenses-directive

Abide by any code of conduct and conflict of interest policy adopted by the
source protection committee and authority to the extent that it is complementary
or in addition to any government directives or applicable statutes.

Avoid disclosing confidential information obtained in your role except where
authorized by law, and avoid using such confidential information outside of your
role as chair of the source protection committee.

Endeavour to avoid creating the appearance of giving preferential treatment to
any person or entity, do not offer any preferential treatment to any person or
entity and do not offer assistance to any person or any entity other than the
assistance given in the ordinary course of your role as the Chair of the source
protection committee.

Recuse yourself from any discussions or decisions by the source protection
committee should any matter come before the Committee which directly involves
any organizations that you have worked for or to which you belong, may belong
or have belonged.

Public Communications/Media:

For media comments, responses, interviews, and news releases in response to
issues that may have direct implications for either the Minister, the Ministry or the
government or are likely to result in inquiries being directed to the Minister or
Government (including all funding or grant announcements and contentious
issues):
o Notify the Ministry’s Conservation and Source Protection Branch
immediately upon becoming aware of the issue.
o Obtain Ministry approval before issuing any media communications in
relation to the above.

7 of 17



DRINK]NG WATER "; Niagara Peninsula
SOURCE PROTECTION ’ CONSERVATION

Our Actions Matter Vlﬂfw@gwﬂéé

REPORT TO: Source Protection Authority
SUBJECT: SPC Member Appointment
REPORT NO: SPA-01-26

DATE: February 27, 2026

Recommendation:

THAT the Source Protection Authority (SPA) re-appoint Ms. Carmen Vega to represent
the City of Hamilton on the Niagara Peninsula Source Protection Committee (SPC).

Purpose:

As the terms of an appointment to the Source Protection Committee cannot exceed 5
years in length, the Source Protection Authority must re-appoint the long serving City of
Hamilton staff member who has been mandated to hold this position in order to comply
with the Source Protection Committee’s by-laws.

Background:

The City of Hamilton Council Report PW07107 (dated July 19, 2007) specified that the
staff member holding the position of Senior Project Manager of Source Protection
Planning be appointed as the City of Hamilton’s Niagara Peninsula Source Protection
Committee representative.

Summary:

As the City of Hamilton’s Senior Project Manager of Source Protection Planning, Ms.
Carmen Vega was appointed to the Source Protection Committee as the City of
Hamilton’s representative in October 2015.

Ms. Vega has been a valuable member of the Source Protection Committee since her
appointment. As she still holds this portfolio and since the terms of appointments can only
be five (5) years in length, the SPA will need to formally re-appoint Ms. Vega as the City
of Hamilton’s representative to the Source Protection Committee in order to comply with
the Source Protection Committee’s by-laws.

Report No: SPA-01-26
SPC Member Appointment
Page 1 of 2

8of 17



Related Reports and Appendices:

1. City of Hamilton Council Report RE: Municipal Representation on Source
Protection Committees (PW07107) — (City Wide).

Prepared by: Reviewed by:

Original Signed by: Original Signed by:

Thomas Proks, P.Geo. David Deluce, MCIP, RPP
Source Water Protection & Hydrogeology Director, Planning & Development
Specialist

Submitted by:

Original Signed by:

Leilani Lee-Yates, BES, MSPL.RPD, MCIP, RPP
CAOQO/Secretary-Treasurer

Report No: SPA-01-26
SPC Member Appointment
Page 2 of 2

9o0f17



CITY WIDE

File WMWP. 2.410 - IMPLICATIONS
S LP- ;f;:—;&z“ _ —g'T_Y QFHAMILTON_ _d“‘ /GCVJ—MLO‘) 14“-& 30/.?0‘0"?'

AJ‘! /.'Mﬁ ed . &ﬂy.{/%mu /o
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
Capital Planning & Implementation Division

Report to: Chair and Members Submitted by: Jim Harnum
Committee of the Whole Acting General Manager
Public Works Department

Date: July 19, 2007 Prepared by:  Mike Bingham
Extension 1301

SUBJECT: Municipal Representation on Source Protection Committees
(PW07107) - (City Wide)

[ RECOMMENDATION: |

(@) That the City of Hamilton appoint a Councillor to the Source Protection
Committee for the Hamilton/Halton Source Protection Region;

(b)  That the City of Hamilton appoint the Senior Project Manager of Source
Protection Planning (Public Works Department) to the Source Protection
Committee for the Hamilton/Halton Source Protection Region, Niagara Peninsula
Source Protection Area, and the Lake Erie Source Protection Region;

(c)  That the General Manager of the Public Works Department be authorized to
undertake discussions with the other Municipalities to facilitate a joint

membership appointment submission to the Lake Erie Source Protection
Authority;

(d)  That the Public Works Department be directed to distribute this report to: the
Ontario Ministry of Environment, the partner Municipalities, and the three Lead
Source Protection Authorities within the City of Hamilton;

(e)  That the City of Hamilton appoint the Senior Director of Water & Wastewater to
the Source Protection Committee for the Hamilton/Halton Source Protection
Region, should an additional seat be allocated to the City of Hamilton in the

future.
/
Harnum
ctlng General Manager
Public Works

10 of 17



SUBJECT: Municipal Representation on Source Protection Committees
(PWO07107) - (City Wide) - Page 2 of 8

[EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: |

The Clean Water Act, under the Ontario Ministry of Environment (MOE), was
proclaimed in October 2006 and enacted on July 3, 2007, with the filing of five
associated regulations. The purpose of the Clean Water Act and its regulations are to
protect existing and future sources of drinking water through formation of watershed
based source protection plans. These plans are to be developed for each watershed
based source protection area by source protection committees. Under the regulations
each committee will consist of multiple stakeholders from each watershed (or watershed
group defined by the MOE). Within the City of Hamilton there are three main watershed
groups which have separate source protection committees as follows:

» Hamilton-Halton Source Protection Region (Hamilton and Halton Conservation
authority watersheds)

» Niagara Peninsula Source Protection Area (Niagara Peninsula Conservation
authority watershed)

« Lake Erie Source Protection Region (Grand River Conservation authority and
neighbouring watersheds along Lake Erie)

Further information about the three Source Protection Committees is provided in the
Background Section of this report (see Table 1)

As each of the source protection areas above include multiple municipalities within their
watershed, the representation on the committee should also include multiple municipal
representation.

The Province of Ontario under the Source Protection Committee Regulation (O. Reg.
288/07) has set the number of representatives for each source protection committee to
ensure that 1/3 membership be municipal. The remaining representation will be made
up of 1/3 industrial/agricultural/commercial and 1/3 non-governmental/other.

The Source Protection Committee Regulation (O. Reg. 288/07) under the Clean Water
Act requires that the Lead Source Protection Authority must notify each Municipal
Council (within their area/region), through the Municipal Clerk, requesting that they
appoint their municipal representatives on the committee (by way of council Resolution).
The municipalities have sixty days after receiving notice from the Lead Source
Protection Authority to appoint their members. As of July 4, 2007, the City has not
received the official request letters, however a courtesy “heads up” letter was sent from
both the Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority and Conservation Halton in June
2007.

In consideration of the limited municipal membership available for each committee and
in preparation for the release of the Regulations, most municipalities have either met
with their source protection authority and/or amongst themselves to agree on how to
select their representatives to most accurately reflect the interests of each watershed.

This report provides a staff recommendation for the selection of municipal membership
from the City of Hamilton for each of the three source protection committees operating
within the City.

| BACKGROUND: |

The Clean Water Act through the Source Protection Areas and Regions Regulation (O.
Reg. 284/07) specifies source protection areas and regions across Ontario (Regions are

11 of 17



SUBJECT: Municipal Representation on Source Protection Committees
(PW07107) - (City Wide) - Page 3 of 8

“areas’ represented by more than one Source Protection Authority). The areas and
regions are based on watershed limits (Area) or multiple watersheds limits (Region).
For each source protection area/region one source protection committee is required to
be created. The creation of the Committee is the responsibility of the Lead Source
Protection Authority. A Source Protection Authority is each conservation authority while
the Lead Source Protection Authority is a conservation authority selected at the
discretion of the MOE for purpose of administering Source Protection Planning
initiatives (see Table 1).

According to the Source Protection Committee Regulation (O. Reg. 288/07) the source
protection committee will be made up of representatives from watershed stakeholders
(such as municipal, agriculture, land owners, industry, environmental non-government
organizations, and members of the public at large) and would work together with
municipalities, conservation authorities, and provincial agencies to create a source
protection plan for each source protection area.

* Important to note that there will be a Source Protection Plan created for each Source
Protection Area. If a Source Protection Committee represents a Source Protection Region
(more than one area) that Committee will be creating more than one Plan (ie.
Hamilton/Halton and Lake Erie Source Protection Regions.) The City of Hamilton will
therefore be included in four Source Protection Plans.

The Source Protection Committees Regulation (O. Reg. 288/07) further states that the
Lead Source Protection Authority will determine groups in consultation with
municipalities (in the City of Hamilton's case this has already been discussed) and
must, not later than September 3, 2007, provide a notice to the clerk of each
municipality located in the source protection area or region that includes the following
information:

a summary of the functions of the source protection committee,

the number of municipal members on the committee;

the groups of municipalities that will select the municipal members,

the number of municipal members that will be selected by each municipal group, and
the date by which a joint list from each municipal group will be submitted to the
source protection authority.

The municipalities have sixty days from the time the notice is given to the clerks, to
provide the joint list to the source protection authority. These notices have not yet been
received, this report is being presented in anticipation of the request letters so that an
official response can be offered before the deadline.

The Public Works Department through their Source Protection Planning Group under
the broader Environmental Planning Section represents the City internally and
externally for source protection planning issues and to also ensure the City's
compliance with the Clean Water Act. This section collaborates with other sections
within Public Works and other Departments within the City (such as: Planning and
Economic Development, and from time to time, Corporate Services, Emergency
Services, and to a lesser extent Community Services) to ensure the collective thoughts
and expertise of Staff are included in recommendations to the MOE and various source
protection authority meetings. As part of the City's ongoing source protection initiatives
Public Works staff have met with the MOE, other municipalities (within the same source
protection areas/regions) and the corresponding source protection authorities regarding
the City’s interest as members of the committee.

12 of 17



SUBJECT: Municipal Representation on Source Protection Committees
(PWO07107) - (City Wide) - Page 4 of 8

The City will be playing a major role in source protection through activities such as:

o developing source protection plans;

o maintaining significant infrastructure resources related to supplying drinking water
to the public;

o monitoring and assessing the risk to the public;

o providing long term liability; and

o budgeting for activities that promote the protection of our drinking water resources
for the future.

As such, it is critical that the City be able to provide input and express their
recommendations as the primary water provider within the City and as a voting member
on the three source protection committees.

City staff have discussed Municipal membership with its partner Municipalities and
agreed on the representation outlined in Table 1, this table also includes Staff
recommendations regarding membership appointees. The recommendations outlined in
Table 1 are reflective of the Ontario Ministry of Environment's “Guidance on Source
Protection Committees under the Clean Water Act” document.

13 of 17



SUB

-T: Municipal Representation on Source Protectic

(PW07107) - (City Wide) - Page 5§ of 8
Table 1- Source Protection Committees and the recommended representatives

committees

Name of Source Protection | Lead Source Participating Municipalities Relevant City of Hamilton | Total # of Seats | Hamilton Seats / Recommended Hamilton
Area/Region Protection Drinking Water Source Municipal Seats Representatives
(i.e. Committee) Authority
Halton-Hamilton Source Halton Region City of Hamilton, Township of 1) Carlisle Well Field (5 16 215 1) A Councillor - City of Hamilton
Protection Region. Conservation Puslinch, Regional Municipality of wells)
Authority Halton, Regional Municipality of Peel one additional seat 2) Senior Project Manager -
2) Freelton Well Field (2 has not been Source Protection Planning (Public
Made up of: wells) confirmed, and may | Works Department)
be distributed the City
s the Conservation 3) Greensville of Hamilton 3) Senior Director of Water &
Halton Watershed, and Well Wastewater - if additional seat is
allocated
e the Hamiiton 4) Lake Ontario —
Conservation Woodward Intakes (3
Authority Watershed intake locations)
Lake Erie Source Grand River City of Hamilton, County of Brant, 1) Lynden Well 22 Partof1/7 1) Senior Project Manager —
Protection Region* Conservation City of Brantford, Township of Source Protection Planning (Public
Authority Amaranth, Township of East Works Department)
Garafraxa, Township of East Luther Hamilton’s seat will
Made up of: Grand Valley, Township of be Shared with
Melancthon, Township of Southgate, neighbouring
o the Grand River Haldimand County, NO!’fC.)lk Qounty. municipalities
Conservation County of Oxford, Municipality of
Authority Watershed, Ngrth Perth, Township of P_erth East,
City of Guelph, Town of Erin,
o the Kettle Creek Townsh'!p of Centre Wellingtan,
Conservation Township of Guelph/Eramosa,
: Township of Mapleton, Township of
Authority Watershed, Puslinch, Township of Wellington
North, Regional Municipality of
i’ Halton, Regional Municipality of
Aznﬂrs::;"t/; I;;gtershe d Waterlop, Municipa}ity of.Bayham,
and ’ Township of Malahide, City of St.
Thomas, Municipality of Central
. . Elgin, Town of Aylmer, Township of
* the Long Point Region Soguthwold, City gf London,
Conservation Municipality of Thames Centre,
Authonty, lieiersted Municipality of Middlesex Centre
Niagara Peninsula Source | Niagara Peninsula | City of Hamilton, Haldimand None 10 1/3 1) Senior Project Manager —
Protection Area Conservation County, Regicnal Municipality of Source Protection Planning (Public
Authority Niagara Works Department)
& It is important fo point out that the City’s representation in comparison to other municipalities is smaller in the Lake Erie Source Protection Region since our

magnitude of municipal infrastructure and wellheads is also smaller in comparison to other stakeholders within the Lake Ene Source Proteclion Region. For
instance, the Region of Waterloo, City of Guelph and Wellington County have several hundred thousand people on groundwater supply and hundreds of municipal
wells in comparison fo our one “Lake Erie Region” well system in Lynden.

14 of 17




SUBJECT: Municipal Representation on Source Protection Committees
(PWO07107) - (City Wide) - Page 6 of 8

As per the Source Protection Committee Regulation (O. Reg. 288/07) the municipality
must provide their recommended membership selection (endorsed by their respective
Council) to the Lead Source Protection Authority directly or through a joint submission
with the other applicable municipalities to the Lead Source Protection Authority within
sixty days after the municipal Clerk receives the written request. The Public Works
Department will forward the Council Resolved representation to the other applicable
Municipalities and ensure a coordinated joint submission is received by the Lead
Source Protection Authority within the prescribed time limits.

Other Municipalities

The Regional Municipality of Halton have tentatively recommended filling municipal
seats on the Halton/Hamilton source protection committee from one senior staff and one
councillor from the Town of Milton. In the Lake Erie and CTC source protection areas
the staff versus political representation has yet to be confirmed.

The City of Ottawa is a single tier municipality within two source protection regions. The
City has not built capacity in terms of staff dedicated to the administration of Source
Protection Planning requirements. The City has tentatively recommended to Council
that membership on the committees be filled by members of Council. The City of Ottawa
Staff added that if there was dedicated source protection staff that those person(s)
would be recommended for appointment to the committees.

| ANALYSIS/RATIONALE: |

The Ontario government passed the Clean Water Act to help protect drinking water at
the source, as part of an overall commitment to safeguard human health and the
environment. The legislation sets prevention as its fundamental principle. Keeping the
sources of our drinking water free of contamination is smarter, safer and more effective
than cleaning up problems after the fact. A key focus of the legislation is the production
of locally developed, science-based drinking water source protection assessment
reports and source protection plans. These plans will be developed by the Source
Protection Committee. The Source Protection Plans could have significant implications
for the Municipality in terms of long term liability, fiscal responsibility, land-use planning,
operation and regulatory enforcement. The Municipality should therefore have a
significant role in the development of the Plans, and has the opportunity to do so
through their representation on the Source Protection Committees. The
recommendations put forth by the City's Public Works Department have considered
members required knowledge as well as discussions with other Municipalities.

Hamilton City Council can pass a resolution to appoint members of their choice to the
committee within sixty days of receiving notice from the Lead Source Protection
Authorities as per the Source Protection Committee Regulation (O. Reg. 288/07).
Otherwise, if the Municipality does not submit their membership appointees, the Lead
Source Protection Authority will appoint members on behalf of the Municipality in
accordance with Ontario Regulation 288/07. The later is a circumstance that is not
necessarily in the City's best interest as it does not consider City Staff
recommendations which are based on internal discussions and consensus with other
municipalities and regulatory agencies concerning the City’s representation. Likewise, if
a group of municipalities list contains more or fewer names than they were told to

15 of 17



SUBJECT: Municipal Representation on Source Protection Committees

(PWO07107) - (City Wide) - Page 7 of 8

provide, the Lead Source Protection Authority would pick from the list of names
provided or select additional members, respectively.

[ ALTERNATIVES FOR CONSIDERATION: |

1.

Do nothing; as per the Clean Water Act Regulations, if the Municipality does not
appoint member(s) within the prescribed time limits the source protection authority
will appoint members on their behalf. This is not a recommended alternative as it
leaves membership and resulting decision making powers/representation to an
individual that may not be suitable from the City of Hamilton's perspective. Likewise
information flow and communication must be transparent and effective. The choice
of staff and political representation, as recommended, will ensure an effective
channel of communication from the Source Protection Committees to applicable staff
and Council.

Select member(s) different than the political/staff cross section recommended
herein. This alternative may include all Staff representation or all Political
Representation. This alternative still ensures the City is represented by its chosen
members. However, it does not allow for the broad input of technical information
available or draw on the background and experiences of staff if all the appointed
representatives are political. Or, on the contrary, where all staff is selected it would
not allow for the valuable political input adept to dealing with the creation of policies
and plans that could broadly and significantly impact the public.

| FINANCIAL/STAFFING/LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: |

The appointment of members as recommended can be effectively implemented with the
existing staff compliment. Members’ time to attend meetings are projected to range from
weekly to monthly. This time commitment will be different for each source protection
area and will be dependant on threats to water supplies, land use, and municipal
infrastructure related to water users in each area. It is expected that the time
commitment will be greatest during the initial stages of the source protection planning
and development of the terms of reference for the source protection area. Thereafter
the time commitment will vary dependant on:

the scheduling of working groups providing information to the committee
(Municipalities, Conservation Authorities, Industry, Consuitants, etc);

need for emergency action; or

sensitivity of approaching deadlines.

| POLICIES AFFECTING PROPOSAL: |

These recommendations do not conflict with any existing municipal policies. The
Source Protection Plans may have significant implications on future land use and/or
water use policies.

[ RELEVANT CONSULTATION: |

Ontario Ministry of Environment
City of Hamilton Public Health
City of Hamilton Public Works

16 of 17



SUBJECT: Municipal Representation on Source Protection Committees
(PWO07107) - (City Wide) - Page 8 of 8

City of Hamilton Planning and Economic Development

Niagara Peninsula Source Protection Authority

Lake Erie Source Protection Authority

Hamilton-Halton Source Protection Authority

Regional Municipality of Halton

Various Municipalities within Lake Erie Source Protection Authority
Regional Municipality of Niagara

[ CITY STRATEGIC COMMITMENT: _ |
By evaluating the “Triple Bottom Line”, (community, environment, economic implications) we can make
choices that create value across all three bottom lines, moving us closer to our vision for a sustainable
community, and Provincial interests.

Community Well-Being is enhanced. Yes 0O No

Community Well-Being is dependant on the community’s availability of safe and sustainable drinking
water supplies. The deliverables of the Source Protection Committees, whose Municipal representatives
are suggested in this report, will provide the long term multi-barrier approach the Province of Ontario has
committed to for the protection of safe sustainable drinking water.

Environmental Well-Being is enhanced. #Yes 0ONo

The deliverables of the Source Protection Committees, whose Municipal representatives are suggested in
this report, will provide the long term multi-barrier approach the Province of Ontario has committed to for
the protection of safe sustainable drinking water. The technical understanding and capacity that results
from Source Protection Planning proliferates environmental awareness.

Economic Well-Being is enhanced. M Yes 0ONo

The protection of long term drinking water supplies; reduces treatment costs in future and ensures a
platform for source drinking water considerate economic development.

Does the option you are recommending create value across all three bottom lines?

M Yes [ No
The recommendation brought forth herein ensures Municipal representation that allows the City of
Hamilton to communicate and discuss issues pertaining to Source Protection Plans across al three
bottom lines.

Do the options you are recommending make Hamilton a City of choice for high performance
public servants? MYes [ONo

This recommendation highlights the City’s aspirations of trusting and transparent working relationships
between Staff and Council, a quality often sought by high performance public servants.

17 of 17



	Source Protection Authority Agenda - February 27, 2026.pdf
	SPA Agenda PKG FEB 27 2026.pdf
	DRAFT Source Protection Authority MINUTES - April 25, 2025.pdf
	357-2025-2381 - signed letter.pdf
	SPC-01-26 SPC Member Appointment.pdf
	070830 City of Hamilton - Council Report.pdf



Niagara Peninsula
CONSERVATION
nafure for all

S

DRINKING WATER
SOURCE PROTECTION

Our Actions Matter

)

SOURCE PROTECTION AUTHORITY
ON-LINE VIDEO CONFERENCE
AND IN-PERSON MEETING

Carolinian Hall
3350 Merrittville Hwy

Friday, April 25, 2025
To Be Held Imnmediately Before the Full Authority Meeting

MINUTES

ATTENDANCE:
Stew Beattie, NPCA Vice-Chair
Brad Clark
Donna Cridland
Rob Foster
Brian Grant
John Metcalfe, NPCA Chair
Patrick O’Neill
Michelle Seaborn
Albert Witteveen
REGRETS:
Mark Tadeson
NPCA: Leilani Lee-Yates, CAO & Secretary Treasurer
Brenden Buggeln, Manager Natural Hazards Management & Resiliency
Melanie Davis, Manager, Office of the CAO & Board
D. Deluce, Director, Planning & Development
Lise Gagnon, Director, Corporate Services
Eric Gervais, Manager Corporate Support Services
Natalie Green, Director, Watershed Strategies & Climate Change
Amy Parks, Manager Planning Ecology
Kim Peters, Manager, Environmental Planning & Policy
Thomas Proks, Source Water Protection Co-ordinator
Sunny Shah, Accounting Coordinator
Gina Shaule, Administrative Assistant

Meeting was called to order at 10:00am
1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Resolution NO. SPA-01-25

Moved by: Brian Grant
Seconded by: Stew Beattie

THAT the agenda dated April 25, 2025 BE APPROVED.
CARRIED
2, DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

10f 17





3.

3.1.

5.1.

8.1.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approval of the Minutes of the Source Protection Authority meeting dated
April 19, 2024

Resolution NO. SPA-02-25
Moved by: Stew Beattie
Seconded by: Albert Witteveen

THAT the Minutes of the Source Protection Authority meeting dated April 19, 2024 BE

APPROVED.
CARRIED

CORRESPONDENCE
None.

PRESENTATIONS
Niagara Peninsula Source Protection Area Overview and Updates
Resolution NO. SPA-03-25

Moved by: Stew Beattie
Seconded by: Albert Witteveen

THAT the Presentation Niagara Peninsula Source Protection Area Overview and

Updates BE RECEIVED
CARRIED

DELEGATIONS
None.

CONSENT ITEMS
None

DISCUSSION ITEMS

Report No. SPA-01-25: 2024 Drinking Water Source Protection Annual
Progress Reporting

Resolution NO. SPA-04-25
Moved by: Donna Cridland
Seconded by: Rob Foster

THAT Report No. SPA-01-25: 2024 Drinking Water Source Protection Annual Progress

Reporting BE APPROVED.
CARRIED

8.2. Report No. SPA-02-25: Issuance of Notices to Niagara Region

Resolution NO. SPA-05-25
Moved by: Albert Witteveen
Seconded by: Stew Beattie

THAT Report No. SPA-02-25: Issuance of Notices to Niagara Region BE APPROVED.

CARRIED

20f17





10.

11.

NEW BUSINESS
None.

CLOSED SESSION
None

ADJOURNMENT
Resolution NO. SPA-06-25

Moved by: Rob Foster
Seconded by: Brian Grant

THAT the Source Water Protection Authority meeting ADJOURN at 10:16 am

30of17





Ministry of the Environment, Ministére de I'Environnement, »
Conservation and Parks de la Protection de la nature et des ===
Parcs

Office of the Minister Bureau du ministre

h 4
777 Bay Street, 5th Floor 777, rue Bay, 5° étage Ontario
Toronto ON M7A 2J3 Toronto (Ontario) M7A 2J3
Tel.: 416-314-6790 Tél. : 416.314.6790

357-2025-2381
February 9, 2026

April Jeffs

25 Parkway

Welland ON L3C 4B9

Email: mayorjeffs@gmail.com

Dear April Jeffs:

Pursuant to subsection 7(4) of the Clean Water Act, 2006, | am pleased to appoint you
as Chair of the Niagara Peninsula Source Protection Committee. Your appointment to
serve at the minister’s pleasure is effective upon the date of this letter for a period of up
to three years and can be revoked at any time.

As the local champion for the program, you will play an important role in maintaining
local program awareness and support, which is essential in achieving local
implementation success. Engaging senior municipal officials as well as business and
community leaders is critical. Your leadership in this regard and your ability to foster this
collaboration will be key to the program’s overall success.

You will be remunerated in accordance with Order in Council 83/2008 which allows for a
per diem of $350. You will also be eligible for reimbursement of reasonable expenses in
accordance with the Management Board of Cabinet's Travel, Meal and Hospitality
Expenses Directive.

We expect that you will be committed to the principles and values of public service and
to perform your duty with integrity. As a government appointee, you are required to
avoid any real or perceived conflict of interest. Accordingly, you cannot use or disclose
any information obtained as a result of your appointment for any purpose unrelated to
your work on the Niagara Peninsula Source Protection Committee. In addition, you
cannot promote solutions or strategies that would directly or indirectly benefit your
employer and/or business interests. In the event any situation in which your personal or
professional interests, relationships or obligations could conflict with your duties as
Chair of the Niagara Peninsula Source Protection Committee, you must declare it to me
in writing, as | will serve as your ethics advisor, at your earliest opportunity.

The Government of Ontario is committed to openness, transparency and collaboration
to promote an efficient, effective and modern public service.

4 of 17



mailto:mayorjeffs@gmail.com



April Jeffs
Page 2.

The terms and conditions of your appointment are set out in Appendix 1 to this letter. If
you have any questions regarding this appointment, please contact Kirsten Service,
Director, Conservation & Source Protection Branch, at 705-987-5144 or by email at
Kirsten.service@Ontario.ca.

| am very pleased that you have taken on this important responsibility to serve the
people of Ontario.

Sincerely,

Gl

Todd McCarthy
Minister of the Environment, Conservation and Parks

Enclosure

C: Kirsten Service, Director, Conservation & Source Protection Branch, MECP

50of17



mailto:Kirsten.service@Ontario.ca



APPENDIX 1

Terms and Conditions of Appointment — Chair of the Source Protection Committee

Roles and Responsibilities:

Complete any required orientation and training provided by the Public
Appointments Secretariat, the Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and
Parks (the Ministry) and the source protection authority.

Attend meetings of the source protection committee, including municipal
meetings, as requested and necessary.

Be the local champion of the program, engage senior municipal officials and
business/community leaders and maintain local program awareness and support
to implement source protection plans.

Upon request of the Director of the Conservation and Source Protection Branch,
chairs will provide an annual forecast of anticipated calendar days expected to be
spent on official business of the committee as chair to the Ministry.

Remuneration:

Submit per diem and expenses to the Ministry’s Conservation and Source
Protection Branch for processing in accordance with directions provided by
Ministry staff. The Ministry reserves the right to confirm details of the
remuneration request with the source protection authority's Chief Administrative
Officer/General Manager (e.g. meeting dates and duration).

Per diem remuneration will be reimbursed as follows:

o $350 per diem for a calendar day attendance at a meeting of the source
protection committee and any preparatory work in accordance with Order
in Council 83/2008 established for the remuneration of source protection
committee Chairs. For the purposes of remuneration, a “calendar day” is
between 3 and 7.25 hours.

o Any time submitted less than 3 hours would be reimbursed at half the
noted per diem rate.

Only one per diem for a calendar day can be claimed by any government
appointee, in accordance with section 3.4 of the Agencies and Appointments
Directive (AAD) of the Management Board of Cabinet
(https://www.ontario.ca/page/agencies-and-appointments-directive).
Work-related travel expenses (e.g. necessary travel and other allowable
expenses) will be reimbursed in accordance with the Management Board of
Cabinet’s Travel, Meal and Hospitality Directive
(https://www.ontario.ca/document/travel-meal-and-hospitality-expenses-directive)
incurred by the Chair in the performance of his or her duties as the Chair of the
source protection committee.

Conflict of Interest and Ethics:

Adhere to the conflict-of-interest rules set out in section 3.3 (Ethical Framework)
of the AAD.

Fulfill the duties of your appointment in a professional, ethical and competent
manner and avoid any real or perceived conflict of interest.

Perform all chair functions in an independent manner and not as a representative
of your employers, any organization to which you belong, or any other person or
body.

6 of 17



https://www.ontario.ca/page/agencies-and-appointments-directive

https://www.ontario.ca/document/travel-meal-and-hospitality-expenses-directive



Abide by any code of conduct and conflict of interest policy adopted by the
source protection committee and authority to the extent that it is complementary
or in addition to any government directives or applicable statutes.

Avoid disclosing confidential information obtained in your role except where
authorized by law, and avoid using such confidential information outside of your
role as chair of the source protection committee.

Endeavour to avoid creating the appearance of giving preferential treatment to
any person or entity, do not offer any preferential treatment to any person or
entity and do not offer assistance to any person or any entity other than the
assistance given in the ordinary course of your role as the Chair of the source
protection committee.

Recuse yourself from any discussions or decisions by the source protection
committee should any matter come before the Committee which directly involves
any organizations that you have worked for or to which you belong, may belong
or have belonged.

Public Communications/Media:

For media comments, responses, interviews, and news releases in response to
issues that may have direct implications for either the Minister, the Ministry or the
government or are likely to result in inquiries being directed to the Minister or
Government (including all funding or grant announcements and contentious
issues):
o Notify the Ministry’s Conservation and Source Protection Branch
immediately upon becoming aware of the issue.
o Obtain Ministry approval before issuing any media communications in
relation to the above.

7 of 17





DRINK]NG WATER "; Niagara Peninsula
SOURCE PROTECTION ’ CONSERVATION

Our Actions Matter Vlﬂfw@gwﬂéé

REPORT TO: Source Protection Authority
SUBJECT: SPC Member Appointment
REPORT NO: SPA-01-26

DATE: February 27, 2026

Recommendation:

THAT the Source Protection Authority (SPA) re-appoint Ms. Carmen Vega to represent
the City of Hamilton on the Niagara Peninsula Source Protection Committee (SPC).

Purpose:

As the terms of an appointment to the Source Protection Committee cannot exceed 5
years in length, the Source Protection Authority must re-appoint the long serving City of
Hamilton staff member who has been mandated to hold this position in order to comply
with the Source Protection Committee’s by-laws.

Background:

The City of Hamilton Council Report PW07107 (dated July 19, 2007) specified that the
staff member holding the position of Senior Project Manager of Source Protection
Planning be appointed as the City of Hamilton’s Niagara Peninsula Source Protection
Committee representative.

Summary:

As the City of Hamilton’s Senior Project Manager of Source Protection Planning, Ms.
Carmen Vega was appointed to the Source Protection Committee as the City of
Hamilton’s representative in October 2015.

Ms. Vega has been a valuable member of the Source Protection Committee since her
appointment. As she still holds this portfolio and since the terms of appointments can only
be five (5) years in length, the SPA will need to formally re-appoint Ms. Vega as the City
of Hamilton’s representative to the Source Protection Committee in order to comply with
the Source Protection Committee’s by-laws.

Report No: SPA-01-26
SPC Member Appointment
Page 1 of 2

8of 17





Related Reports and Appendices:

1. City of Hamilton Council Report RE: Municipal Representation on Source
Protection Committees (PW07107) — (City Wide).

Prepared by: Reviewed by:

Original Signed by: Original Signed by:

Thomas Proks, P.Geo. David Deluce, MCIP, RPP
Source Water Protection & Hydrogeology Director, Planning & Development
Specialist

Submitted by:

Original Signed by:

Leilani Lee-Yates, BES, MSPL.RPD, MCIP, RPP
CAOQO/Secretary-Treasurer

Report No: SPA-01-26
SPC Member Appointment
Page 2 of 2

9o0f17





CITY WIDE

File WMWP. 2.410 - IMPLICATIONS
S LP- ;f;:—;&z“ _ —g'T_Y QFHAMILTON_ _d“‘ /GCVJ—MLO‘) 14“-& 30/.?0‘0"?'

AJ‘! /.'Mﬁ ed . &ﬂy.{/%mu /o
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
Capital Planning & Implementation Division

Report to: Chair and Members Submitted by: Jim Harnum
Committee of the Whole Acting General Manager
Public Works Department

Date: July 19, 2007 Prepared by:  Mike Bingham
Extension 1301

SUBJECT: Municipal Representation on Source Protection Committees
(PW07107) - (City Wide)

[ RECOMMENDATION: |

(@) That the City of Hamilton appoint a Councillor to the Source Protection
Committee for the Hamilton/Halton Source Protection Region;

(b)  That the City of Hamilton appoint the Senior Project Manager of Source
Protection Planning (Public Works Department) to the Source Protection
Committee for the Hamilton/Halton Source Protection Region, Niagara Peninsula
Source Protection Area, and the Lake Erie Source Protection Region;

(c)  That the General Manager of the Public Works Department be authorized to
undertake discussions with the other Municipalities to facilitate a joint

membership appointment submission to the Lake Erie Source Protection
Authority;

(d)  That the Public Works Department be directed to distribute this report to: the
Ontario Ministry of Environment, the partner Municipalities, and the three Lead
Source Protection Authorities within the City of Hamilton;

(e)  That the City of Hamilton appoint the Senior Director of Water & Wastewater to
the Source Protection Committee for the Hamilton/Halton Source Protection
Region, should an additional seat be allocated to the City of Hamilton in the

future.
/
Harnum
ctlng General Manager
Public Works

10 of 17





SUBJECT: Municipal Representation on Source Protection Committees
(PWO07107) - (City Wide) - Page 2 of 8

[EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: |

The Clean Water Act, under the Ontario Ministry of Environment (MOE), was
proclaimed in October 2006 and enacted on July 3, 2007, with the filing of five
associated regulations. The purpose of the Clean Water Act and its regulations are to
protect existing and future sources of drinking water through formation of watershed
based source protection plans. These plans are to be developed for each watershed
based source protection area by source protection committees. Under the regulations
each committee will consist of multiple stakeholders from each watershed (or watershed
group defined by the MOE). Within the City of Hamilton there are three main watershed
groups which have separate source protection committees as follows:

» Hamilton-Halton Source Protection Region (Hamilton and Halton Conservation
authority watersheds)

» Niagara Peninsula Source Protection Area (Niagara Peninsula Conservation
authority watershed)

« Lake Erie Source Protection Region (Grand River Conservation authority and
neighbouring watersheds along Lake Erie)

Further information about the three Source Protection Committees is provided in the
Background Section of this report (see Table 1)

As each of the source protection areas above include multiple municipalities within their
watershed, the representation on the committee should also include multiple municipal
representation.

The Province of Ontario under the Source Protection Committee Regulation (O. Reg.
288/07) has set the number of representatives for each source protection committee to
ensure that 1/3 membership be municipal. The remaining representation will be made
up of 1/3 industrial/agricultural/commercial and 1/3 non-governmental/other.

The Source Protection Committee Regulation (O. Reg. 288/07) under the Clean Water
Act requires that the Lead Source Protection Authority must notify each Municipal
Council (within their area/region), through the Municipal Clerk, requesting that they
appoint their municipal representatives on the committee (by way of council Resolution).
The municipalities have sixty days after receiving notice from the Lead Source
Protection Authority to appoint their members. As of July 4, 2007, the City has not
received the official request letters, however a courtesy “heads up” letter was sent from
both the Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority and Conservation Halton in June
2007.

In consideration of the limited municipal membership available for each committee and
in preparation for the release of the Regulations, most municipalities have either met
with their source protection authority and/or amongst themselves to agree on how to
select their representatives to most accurately reflect the interests of each watershed.

This report provides a staff recommendation for the selection of municipal membership
from the City of Hamilton for each of the three source protection committees operating
within the City.

| BACKGROUND: |

The Clean Water Act through the Source Protection Areas and Regions Regulation (O.
Reg. 284/07) specifies source protection areas and regions across Ontario (Regions are

11 of 17





SUBJECT: Municipal Representation on Source Protection Committees
(PW07107) - (City Wide) - Page 3 of 8

“areas’ represented by more than one Source Protection Authority). The areas and
regions are based on watershed limits (Area) or multiple watersheds limits (Region).
For each source protection area/region one source protection committee is required to
be created. The creation of the Committee is the responsibility of the Lead Source
Protection Authority. A Source Protection Authority is each conservation authority while
the Lead Source Protection Authority is a conservation authority selected at the
discretion of the MOE for purpose of administering Source Protection Planning
initiatives (see Table 1).

According to the Source Protection Committee Regulation (O. Reg. 288/07) the source
protection committee will be made up of representatives from watershed stakeholders
(such as municipal, agriculture, land owners, industry, environmental non-government
organizations, and members of the public at large) and would work together with
municipalities, conservation authorities, and provincial agencies to create a source
protection plan for each source protection area.

* Important to note that there will be a Source Protection Plan created for each Source
Protection Area. If a Source Protection Committee represents a Source Protection Region
(more than one area) that Committee will be creating more than one Plan (ie.
Hamilton/Halton and Lake Erie Source Protection Regions.) The City of Hamilton will
therefore be included in four Source Protection Plans.

The Source Protection Committees Regulation (O. Reg. 288/07) further states that the
Lead Source Protection Authority will determine groups in consultation with
municipalities (in the City of Hamilton's case this has already been discussed) and
must, not later than September 3, 2007, provide a notice to the clerk of each
municipality located in the source protection area or region that includes the following
information:

a summary of the functions of the source protection committee,

the number of municipal members on the committee;

the groups of municipalities that will select the municipal members,

the number of municipal members that will be selected by each municipal group, and
the date by which a joint list from each municipal group will be submitted to the
source protection authority.

The municipalities have sixty days from the time the notice is given to the clerks, to
provide the joint list to the source protection authority. These notices have not yet been
received, this report is being presented in anticipation of the request letters so that an
official response can be offered before the deadline.

The Public Works Department through their Source Protection Planning Group under
the broader Environmental Planning Section represents the City internally and
externally for source protection planning issues and to also ensure the City's
compliance with the Clean Water Act. This section collaborates with other sections
within Public Works and other Departments within the City (such as: Planning and
Economic Development, and from time to time, Corporate Services, Emergency
Services, and to a lesser extent Community Services) to ensure the collective thoughts
and expertise of Staff are included in recommendations to the MOE and various source
protection authority meetings. As part of the City's ongoing source protection initiatives
Public Works staff have met with the MOE, other municipalities (within the same source
protection areas/regions) and the corresponding source protection authorities regarding
the City’s interest as members of the committee.

12 of 17





SUBJECT: Municipal Representation on Source Protection Committees
(PWO07107) - (City Wide) - Page 4 of 8

The City will be playing a major role in source protection through activities such as:

o developing source protection plans;

o maintaining significant infrastructure resources related to supplying drinking water
to the public;

o monitoring and assessing the risk to the public;

o providing long term liability; and

o budgeting for activities that promote the protection of our drinking water resources
for the future.

As such, it is critical that the City be able to provide input and express their
recommendations as the primary water provider within the City and as a voting member
on the three source protection committees.

City staff have discussed Municipal membership with its partner Municipalities and
agreed on the representation outlined in Table 1, this table also includes Staff
recommendations regarding membership appointees. The recommendations outlined in
Table 1 are reflective of the Ontario Ministry of Environment's “Guidance on Source
Protection Committees under the Clean Water Act” document.

13 of 17





SUB

-T: Municipal Representation on Source Protectic

(PW07107) - (City Wide) - Page 5§ of 8
Table 1- Source Protection Committees and the recommended representatives

committees

Name of Source Protection | Lead Source Participating Municipalities Relevant City of Hamilton | Total # of Seats | Hamilton Seats / Recommended Hamilton
Area/Region Protection Drinking Water Source Municipal Seats Representatives
(i.e. Committee) Authority
Halton-Hamilton Source Halton Region City of Hamilton, Township of 1) Carlisle Well Field (5 16 215 1) A Councillor - City of Hamilton
Protection Region. Conservation Puslinch, Regional Municipality of wells)
Authority Halton, Regional Municipality of Peel one additional seat 2) Senior Project Manager -
2) Freelton Well Field (2 has not been Source Protection Planning (Public
Made up of: wells) confirmed, and may | Works Department)
be distributed the City
s the Conservation 3) Greensville of Hamilton 3) Senior Director of Water &
Halton Watershed, and Well Wastewater - if additional seat is
allocated
e the Hamiiton 4) Lake Ontario —
Conservation Woodward Intakes (3
Authority Watershed intake locations)
Lake Erie Source Grand River City of Hamilton, County of Brant, 1) Lynden Well 22 Partof1/7 1) Senior Project Manager —
Protection Region* Conservation City of Brantford, Township of Source Protection Planning (Public
Authority Amaranth, Township of East Works Department)
Garafraxa, Township of East Luther Hamilton’s seat will
Made up of: Grand Valley, Township of be Shared with
Melancthon, Township of Southgate, neighbouring
o the Grand River Haldimand County, NO!’fC.)lk Qounty. municipalities
Conservation County of Oxford, Municipality of
Authority Watershed, Ngrth Perth, Township of P_erth East,
City of Guelph, Town of Erin,
o the Kettle Creek Townsh'!p of Centre Wellingtan,
Conservation Township of Guelph/Eramosa,
: Township of Mapleton, Township of
Authority Watershed, Puslinch, Township of Wellington
North, Regional Municipality of
i’ Halton, Regional Municipality of
Aznﬂrs::;"t/; I;;gtershe d Waterlop, Municipa}ity of.Bayham,
and ’ Township of Malahide, City of St.
Thomas, Municipality of Central
. . Elgin, Town of Aylmer, Township of
* the Long Point Region Soguthwold, City gf London,
Conservation Municipality of Thames Centre,
Authonty, lieiersted Municipality of Middlesex Centre
Niagara Peninsula Source | Niagara Peninsula | City of Hamilton, Haldimand None 10 1/3 1) Senior Project Manager —
Protection Area Conservation County, Regicnal Municipality of Source Protection Planning (Public
Authority Niagara Works Department)
& It is important fo point out that the City’s representation in comparison to other municipalities is smaller in the Lake Erie Source Protection Region since our

magnitude of municipal infrastructure and wellheads is also smaller in comparison to other stakeholders within the Lake Ene Source Proteclion Region. For
instance, the Region of Waterloo, City of Guelph and Wellington County have several hundred thousand people on groundwater supply and hundreds of municipal
wells in comparison fo our one “Lake Erie Region” well system in Lynden.

14 of 17






SUBJECT: Municipal Representation on Source Protection Committees
(PWO07107) - (City Wide) - Page 6 of 8

As per the Source Protection Committee Regulation (O. Reg. 288/07) the municipality
must provide their recommended membership selection (endorsed by their respective
Council) to the Lead Source Protection Authority directly or through a joint submission
with the other applicable municipalities to the Lead Source Protection Authority within
sixty days after the municipal Clerk receives the written request. The Public Works
Department will forward the Council Resolved representation to the other applicable
Municipalities and ensure a coordinated joint submission is received by the Lead
Source Protection Authority within the prescribed time limits.

Other Municipalities

The Regional Municipality of Halton have tentatively recommended filling municipal
seats on the Halton/Hamilton source protection committee from one senior staff and one
councillor from the Town of Milton. In the Lake Erie and CTC source protection areas
the staff versus political representation has yet to be confirmed.

The City of Ottawa is a single tier municipality within two source protection regions. The
City has not built capacity in terms of staff dedicated to the administration of Source
Protection Planning requirements. The City has tentatively recommended to Council
that membership on the committees be filled by members of Council. The City of Ottawa
Staff added that if there was dedicated source protection staff that those person(s)
would be recommended for appointment to the committees.

| ANALYSIS/RATIONALE: |

The Ontario government passed the Clean Water Act to help protect drinking water at
the source, as part of an overall commitment to safeguard human health and the
environment. The legislation sets prevention as its fundamental principle. Keeping the
sources of our drinking water free of contamination is smarter, safer and more effective
than cleaning up problems after the fact. A key focus of the legislation is the production
of locally developed, science-based drinking water source protection assessment
reports and source protection plans. These plans will be developed by the Source
Protection Committee. The Source Protection Plans could have significant implications
for the Municipality in terms of long term liability, fiscal responsibility, land-use planning,
operation and regulatory enforcement. The Municipality should therefore have a
significant role in the development of the Plans, and has the opportunity to do so
through their representation on the Source Protection Committees. The
recommendations put forth by the City's Public Works Department have considered
members required knowledge as well as discussions with other Municipalities.

Hamilton City Council can pass a resolution to appoint members of their choice to the
committee within sixty days of receiving notice from the Lead Source Protection
Authorities as per the Source Protection Committee Regulation (O. Reg. 288/07).
Otherwise, if the Municipality does not submit their membership appointees, the Lead
Source Protection Authority will appoint members on behalf of the Municipality in
accordance with Ontario Regulation 288/07. The later is a circumstance that is not
necessarily in the City's best interest as it does not consider City Staff
recommendations which are based on internal discussions and consensus with other
municipalities and regulatory agencies concerning the City’s representation. Likewise, if
a group of municipalities list contains more or fewer names than they were told to

15 of 17





SUBJECT: Municipal Representation on Source Protection Committees

(PWO07107) - (City Wide) - Page 7 of 8

provide, the Lead Source Protection Authority would pick from the list of names
provided or select additional members, respectively.

[ ALTERNATIVES FOR CONSIDERATION: |

1.

Do nothing; as per the Clean Water Act Regulations, if the Municipality does not
appoint member(s) within the prescribed time limits the source protection authority
will appoint members on their behalf. This is not a recommended alternative as it
leaves membership and resulting decision making powers/representation to an
individual that may not be suitable from the City of Hamilton's perspective. Likewise
information flow and communication must be transparent and effective. The choice
of staff and political representation, as recommended, will ensure an effective
channel of communication from the Source Protection Committees to applicable staff
and Council.

Select member(s) different than the political/staff cross section recommended
herein. This alternative may include all Staff representation or all Political
Representation. This alternative still ensures the City is represented by its chosen
members. However, it does not allow for the broad input of technical information
available or draw on the background and experiences of staff if all the appointed
representatives are political. Or, on the contrary, where all staff is selected it would
not allow for the valuable political input adept to dealing with the creation of policies
and plans that could broadly and significantly impact the public.

| FINANCIAL/STAFFING/LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: |

The appointment of members as recommended can be effectively implemented with the
existing staff compliment. Members’ time to attend meetings are projected to range from
weekly to monthly. This time commitment will be different for each source protection
area and will be dependant on threats to water supplies, land use, and municipal
infrastructure related to water users in each area. It is expected that the time
commitment will be greatest during the initial stages of the source protection planning
and development of the terms of reference for the source protection area. Thereafter
the time commitment will vary dependant on:

the scheduling of working groups providing information to the committee
(Municipalities, Conservation Authorities, Industry, Consuitants, etc);

need for emergency action; or

sensitivity of approaching deadlines.

| POLICIES AFFECTING PROPOSAL: |

These recommendations do not conflict with any existing municipal policies. The
Source Protection Plans may have significant implications on future land use and/or
water use policies.

[ RELEVANT CONSULTATION: |

Ontario Ministry of Environment
City of Hamilton Public Health
City of Hamilton Public Works

16 of 17





SUBJECT: Municipal Representation on Source Protection Committees
(PWO07107) - (City Wide) - Page 8 of 8

City of Hamilton Planning and Economic Development

Niagara Peninsula Source Protection Authority

Lake Erie Source Protection Authority

Hamilton-Halton Source Protection Authority

Regional Municipality of Halton

Various Municipalities within Lake Erie Source Protection Authority
Regional Municipality of Niagara

[ CITY STRATEGIC COMMITMENT: _ |
By evaluating the “Triple Bottom Line”, (community, environment, economic implications) we can make
choices that create value across all three bottom lines, moving us closer to our vision for a sustainable
community, and Provincial interests.

Community Well-Being is enhanced. Yes 0O No

Community Well-Being is dependant on the community’s availability of safe and sustainable drinking
water supplies. The deliverables of the Source Protection Committees, whose Municipal representatives
are suggested in this report, will provide the long term multi-barrier approach the Province of Ontario has
committed to for the protection of safe sustainable drinking water.

Environmental Well-Being is enhanced. #Yes 0ONo

The deliverables of the Source Protection Committees, whose Municipal representatives are suggested in
this report, will provide the long term multi-barrier approach the Province of Ontario has committed to for
the protection of safe sustainable drinking water. The technical understanding and capacity that results
from Source Protection Planning proliferates environmental awareness.

Economic Well-Being is enhanced. M Yes 0ONo

The protection of long term drinking water supplies; reduces treatment costs in future and ensures a
platform for source drinking water considerate economic development.

Does the option you are recommending create value across all three bottom lines?

M Yes [ No
The recommendation brought forth herein ensures Municipal representation that allows the City of
Hamilton to communicate and discuss issues pertaining to Source Protection Plans across al three
bottom lines.

Do the options you are recommending make Hamilton a City of choice for high performance
public servants? MYes [ONo

This recommendation highlights the City’s aspirations of trusting and transparent working relationships
between Staff and Council, a quality often sought by high performance public servants.

17 of 17





		DRAFT Source Protection Authority MINUTES - April 25, 2025.pdf

		357-2025-2381 - signed letter.pdf

		SPC-01-26 SPC Member Appointment.pdf

		070830 City of Hamilton - Council Report.pdf









